
Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

  MINUTES 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

BUSINESS MEETING 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY HALL 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 15, 2022 - 7:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

• ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
The Township manager shared the meeting was being video recorded for future broadcast. 
 
The Township Solicitor shared an executive session on March 13th to discuss real estate 
matters. No decisions were made. 

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

There was no public comment. 
 

OFFICIAL ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. Consent agenda 
 
Chair DeLello pointed out that Supervisor Quigley was absent from the last meeting and would 
abstain from the vote on the minutes.  
 
Vice Chair Betz motioned to approve the consent agenda including the monthly Treasurer’s 
report, bill payment for the month totaling $568,134.62, and approval of the March 15th 
Business meeting minutes. Supervisor DeLello seconded the motion. The consent agenda was 
passed unanimously. 

 
2. Resolution 2023-08: A resolution to grant final approval of the Zacharczuk subdivision (aka 

Bellflower) 
 
Township solicitor Bob Brant provided an overview of the project, its size, and number of 
units. Mr. Brant shared the project had passed through the Planning Commission and has been 
reviewed by the Township Engineer. He noted a traffic impact fee of $71,586.00 was also 
required of the project, along with a $80,000 fee in lieu of planting trees. 
 
Supervisor Quigley asked about the fee in lieu of the trees, and the purchase of EDUs from 
Upper Gwynedd Township. The Township Engineer, Mr. Nolan, noted the fee for the trees was 
calculated because the lot – which is largely wooded – could not fit the number of replacement 
trees they were required to plant on-site. 
 



Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

Mr. Chuck Splendor presented on behalf of the applicant. He endorsed Mr. Brant’s summary of 
the project as accurate and called attention to the Final Plans presented to the Planning 
Commission the past February. He shared the review letters from the Township’s engineers are 
clean and that they are now seeking Final Plan approval. 
 
Chair DeLello asked Mr. Splendor some clarifying questions: 
 
Supervisors DeLello asked about the decision to pursue a fee in lieu of the trees. Mr. Nolan 
replied the waivers related to slopes prevented larger numbers of trees from being removed, 
however, the number of trees removed still necessitated more replacement trees than could be 
planted on site. 
 
Supervisor DeLello asked if the applicant agreed with and accepted all conditions outlined to 
date. Mr. Splendor replied in the affirmative. 
 
Supervisor Quigley asked about the connection for the sewer pipe. Mr. Splendor replied it 
would be connected near the Reserve. Mr. Nolan stated an 8” line would be used. Mr. Splendor 
utilized a map to call attention to specific locations. 
 
Supervisor Quigley asked if the woods around the development would be pruned or left as-is. 
Mr. Splendor stated the woods would be left alone. 
 
Supervisor DeLello asked about storm water management on the site. Mr. Nolan replied the 
stormwater management ordinance dictates MS4 requirements, and this project complies with 
that ordinance and NPDES requirements. He added that the project engineer, Susan Rice, was 
well versed in the subject. Supervisor DeLello asked about the maintenance of the stormwater 
basins. Mr. Nolan replied there was a stormwater management agreement in place. 
 
Mr. Quigley asked about the aesthetics of the homes. Mr. Splendor stated that he could not 
speak to the specific style, but the size and sale price of the homes would be similar to those on 
the Toll Project at Center Square. 
 
Supervisor Betz asked about the size of the lots. Mr. Splendor replied about a half-acre. Mr. 
Splendor shared that the project was designed assuming the maximum amount of impervious 
surface allowed by ordinance would be used, when calculating their MS4 figures. 
 
Mr. Quigley asked about the status of a Homeowners Association. Mr. Splendor confirmed 
there would be an HOA. 
 
Supervisor Betz motioned to approve Resolution 2023-08, granting Final Plan Approval 
to Bellflower. Supervisor Quigley seconded the motion. There was no public comment. 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

3. Resolution 2023-09: A resolution to accept Right-of-Way (Stump Hall Road) 
 
Mr. Brant provided an overview of the Resolution, which would accept land from a three-lot 
sub-division from 1995. A portion of lots two and three were offered to, but not accepted by, 
the Township until now. Those portions of the lots are necessary for the Rt. 363 widening 
projects. 
 



Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

Supervisor Betz motioned to approve Resolution 2023-09, accepting Right of Way along 
the Valley Forge Corridor. Supervisor Quigley seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. James Beam commented about the properties just discussed. Jim shared they had belonged 
to longtime Township Supervisor Jack Graham. 
 
Chair DeLello thanked Jim for his comment. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

4. Motion: A motion to certify qualified volunteers for the Act 172 Earned Income Tax Credit for 
2022 
 
Township Manager Sean Halbom summarized the motion, which affords municipalities the 
ability to offer a property tax discount to volunteer emergency responders. 
 
Chair DeLello summarized the history of the benefit, which was passed first several years ago 
to help thank and reward those volunteers for their efforts. 
 
Supervisor Betz motioned to approve authorization to certify qualified volunteers for the 
Act 172 earned income tax credit for 2022. Supervisor Quigley seconded the motion. 
There was no public comment. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
5. Motion 

• A motion to authorize execution by the Township of the Valley Forge Road Corridor 
Deeds of Dedication and Temporary Construction Easements signed by Timothy Gates 
and Lisa Nicholson 

 
Supervisor Betz motioned to approve Resolution 2023-09, to authorize execution by the 
Township of the Valley Forge Road Corridor Deeds of Dedication and Temporary 
Construction Easements signed by Timothy Gates and Lisa Nicholson, per the criteria 
outlined by Township Solicitor, Bob Brant. Supervisor Quigley seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Supervisor Quigley asked about the status of the project at Valley Forge Road and Germantown Pike. 
The Township Engineer, Joe Nolan, replied that the project has not progressed in land development 
since their preliminary plans were received and responded to. Mr. Nolan shared the owner of the 
property is currently in the midst of a voluntary PA DEP (Act 2) remediation. 
 
Mr. Quigley asked about the process for environmental inspections of the property and shared that 
residents had reached out to him with concern. Mr. Nolan stated an environmental study had been 
performed, and is regulated by PA DEP, not the Township. Mr. Nolan reiterated that the project is still 
required to comply with the land development process, once they reply to their preliminary plan 
reviews.  
 
Mr. Betz shared some brief history of the project site, which is a licensed junkyard. Mr. Betz asked if 
there is an environmental study of the property, when or how the Township can obtain a copy. He 
asked if there were any manifests of material that left the property. Mr. Nolan confirmed that manifests 
are required, but monitored by PA DEP. Supervisor Betz expressed concern about a nearby site, the 
former Stimler Oil property, which had its large oil tank removed recently. 



Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

 
Mr. Betz shared the Worcester Fire Department recently sold one of their trucks and is in the process 
of purchasing a replacement truck and voiced his support for the agency. 
 
Chair DeLello asked about the project site at Germantown and Valley Forge Road. Chair DeLello 
asked about the environmental report and how to get a copy. Mr. Nolan replied a copy had been 
requested in the preliminary review letter. Mr. Quigley asked about the layout and traffic design on the 
project. Mr. Nolan replied the Traffic Engineer (McMahon) reviews those issues to ensure compliance 
with our ordinance. The Board discussed the progress of the project to-date through the Zoning 
Hearing Board and Planning Commission. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Wini Hayes thanked Mr. Nolan for his service to the Township over his career. Mrs. Hayes asked if a 
list of contaminates was available for the property at Germantown Pike and Valley Forge Road (The 
Dubner Property). Supervisor DeLello replied that the Township is working on gathering documents at 
this time. Mr. Brant and Mr. Halbom shared the Township had received a letter from PA DEP recently 
that identifies some contaminants and encouraged her to file a Right to Know request for the 
document. 
 
Mrs. Hayes asked about the setbacks from the BET project buildings and the road. Mr. Nolan replied 
he didn’t know offhand, but the plans would detail that information. Ms. Hayes reiterated her concerns 
about the Comprehensive Plan Update from the previous meeting. She requested the Task Force be 
allowed to revisit the document. 
 
Michelle Greenawalt thanked Joe Nolan for his service and commended him for his knowledge and 
thoroughness. She asked for added transparency with the BET projects. She shared that, in her role as 
a member of the Planning Commission, the commission would benefit from additional time and data 
for such projects. 
 
Chair DeLello interjected to offer that Mrs. Greenawalt may have been conflating the curative 
amendment and the preliminary plans for the BET site. Mr. Betz asked about the vote for the curative 
amendment. She shared the vote passed 3-2, with her and Bob voting no based on a lack of 
information on which to base a decision. Mr. Brant asked to clarify which item Mrs. Greenawalt was 
commenting on, she replied the curative amendment. Mr. Brant stated that the hearing was not before 
the Zoning Hearing Board. 
 
Supervisor Quigley recalled the professional planner hired by the Township to assess the curative 
amendment, did meet with the Planning Commission at some point. He shared his recollection of the 
process to-date. Supervisor Betz voiced appreciation for Mrs. Greenawalt’s comments. 
 
Joe Nolan announced that he’ll be retiring on June 30th of this year. He stated he has shared the 
information with the Township Manager to provide for an easy turnover. He thanked the Board for the 
opportunity to serve Worcester since 1987. 
 
Chair DeLello thanked Mr. Nolan for his time and service. He pointed out that Joe has been 
reappointed Township Engineer on an annual basis for thirty-five years, which is extremely rare, and a 
testament to Joe’s integrity and hard work.  
 
Bert Hynes also started his comments by thanking Mr. Nolan for his long career. Mr. Haines thanked 
the Board for their diligence in watching the BET project progress. He shared that Mr. Betz 



Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

recollection was correct, and that the site has served a variety of purposes of the years, including a 
junk yard and car dealership. He shared that tired were burned regularly on the site in past, when such 
practices were commonplace. He encouraged the Board to keep abreast of the project’s development.  
 
Bert endorsed Mrs. Hayes’ earlier comments and requested the Board allow the task force to review 
the document.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:12 PM. 
 

 



Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

  MINUTES 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

BUSINESS MEETING 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY HALL 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 19, 2022 - 7:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER – The meeting was called to order at 7:02PM. 
 

• ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
The Township Manager announced the meeting was being video recorded for broadcast. 
 
The Township Solicitor shared the Board met for Executive Session on April 13th, 2023 from 
3pm until about 5pm to discuss litigation and real estate.  
 
The Board Chair shared he, Supervisor Quigley, the Township Manger, and Assistant Manager 
would be attending the PSATS conference the following week. 

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

John and Alice Roberts of Skippack Pike offered comment regarding a Zoning matter and their 
neighbor. Mr. and Mrs. Roberts expressed several concerns about the neighboring property and 
requested the Board investigate permitting requirements of their neighboring property. 
 
Chair DeLello thanked Mrs. Roberts for her comments and stated the Township would research the 
matter and the materials she provided to the Board and staff. Mr. Brant followed up on the Chairmans 
comments by encouraging the Roberts to contact the state police with any matters relevant to 
trespassing. Supervisor Quigley responded by committing the Township would look into the matter. 

 
OFFICIAL ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. Consent agenda 
Supervisor Betz shared the March Minutes did not include comments related to three 
comments, one of which did not make it, the removal of a 250,000 gallon oil tank on 
Germantown Pike. Supervisor Betz motioned to approve a consent agenda, and table the 
March Business Meeting Minutes, that includes the following items: 

i. Treasurer’s Report and other Monthly Reports for March 2023; 
ii. bill payment for March 2023; Table to the March Meeting Minutes until the 

May meeting. 
 

 Supervisor Quigley seconded the motion, the motion passed unanimously. 
 

2. Resolution 2023-12  
•  a resolution to approve grant application for Fisher Road Open Space Master Plan. 

 



Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

Assistant Township Manage, Amanda Lafty, summarized the matching grant 
application for $100,000 ($50,000 match) to PA DCNR, which requires a Resolution 
from the Board. This would create a Master Plan for the Fisher Road property to 
identify opportunities for the site. 
 
Supervisor Betz asked to confirm the match. Chair DeLello replied that a dollar-for-
dollar match, up to $50,000 would be matched by the commonwealth.  
 
Supervisor Betz motioned to approve Resolution 2023-12. To approve a grant 
application for 3335 Fisher Road Open Space Master Plan. Supervisor Quigley 
seconded the motion. There was no public comment. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
3. Resolution 2023-10 

• a resolution to execute a master agreement for casting adjustments with the Pennsylvania 
Department of Transportation 
 
The Township Manager summarized the agreement, which allows the Public Works 
team to access castings through PennDOT, when needed. If not used, the Township 
does not pay for any services. The agreement is for three, three-year periods, and this is 
the Township’s first renewal. 
 
Supervisor Betz motioned to approve Resolution 2023-10, to execute a master 
agreement for casting adjustments with the Pennsylvania Department of 
Transportation. Supervisory Quigley seconded the motion. Chair DeLello asked 
for any public comment: 
 
Ms. Hayes, of Fisher Road, asked, “what are castings?”. The Township Manger replied 
that it was a group buy for pipe parts and sundry utility parts. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

4. Resolution 2023-11  
• a resolution to designate an official to execute all documents and agreements regarding 

the Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development Multimodal 
Transportation Fund Grant Program 
 
The Township Manager stated the grant revenue is nearly spent; however, the timelines 
may be extended by the terms of the grant. He shared this was the final extension 
period. Supervisor Betz asked about why the Township pays for a state road repair. 
Chair DeLello replied this grant was entirely funded through the state. 
 
Supervisor Betz motioned to approve Resolution 2023-11, to designate an official 
to execute all documents and agreements regarding the Pennsylvania Department 
of Community and Economic Development Multimodal Transportation Grant 
Program. Supervisory Quigley seconded the motion. There was no public 
comment. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

5. Motion 



Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

• a motion to award a bid for the construction of a compost storage building at Nike Park 
to Heritage Post Frame, of Nottingham Pennsylvania, in the amount of $69,850.00. 

 
The Township Manager reported that five bids were received, Heritage Post Frame was the 
lowest of the five bidders. The structure will be used to store equipment at the Nike Park 
Facility to support the compost operation. Supervisor Quigley asked about the specific use. 
Supervisor Betz asked about the security of the site. Mr. Halbom replied that the structure 
would keep the equipment out of the elements and locked away. He shared the facility is 
under security surveillance. 
 
Supervisor Betz motioned to authorize award of a bid for the construction of a compost 
storage building at Nike Park to Heritage Post Frame, in the amount of $69,850. Supervisor 
Quigley seconded the motion. 
 
Ms. Hayes offered public comment concerning the security of the site. The Township 
Manger replied that he could discuss the matter privately, but that security concerns will be 
investigated promptly.  
 
 

6. Motion 
• A motion to authorize execution by the Township of the Valley Forge Corridor Deed of 

Dedication and Temporary Construction Easements signed by K. Richardson and W. 
McGrane. 

 
The Township Solicitor offered a summary of the Valley Forge Widening project and the 
Deed of Dedication. 
 
Supervisor Betz motioned to authorize execution by the Township of the Valley Forge 
Corridor Deed of Dedication and Temporary Construction Easements signed by K. 
Richardson and W. McGrane. Supervisory Quigley seconded the motion. There was 
no public comment. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 There was no other business discussed. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Ms. Hayes followed up on her previous comments concerning the Comprehensive Plan Update. 
Chair DeLello shared that he and the Township Manger had spoken with Brian at MCPC. Chair 
DeLello expressed concern about going backward in the process but encouraged Ms. Hayes to 
reach out with any thoughts or concerns. 
 
Christine Steer asked about the plan for the Comprehensive Plan going forward. Chair DeLello 
shared the next step is adoption once it has been determined if any changes are necessary. She 
asked about the status of Community Day for the Township. The Township Manager replied that 
staff are looking into plans to revive Community Day for 2024 following COVID. The Township 
also plans to host a smaller event sometime in 2023. 
Bill McGrane of Stump Hall Road commented as a member of the Farmers Union Horse 
Company. He shared support for the return of Community Day. He shared a brief history of how 



Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 
 

FUHC was the traditional host of a Community Day, and they would love to support or join 
hands with the Township to support any efforts. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:47PM. 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 

Planning Commission – Thursday, April 27, 2023 (7:00 PM) 
 
Zoning Hearing Board – Tuesday, May 2, 2023 (Continuance of Palmer Property, Seventh Day Adventist Church, 
Figen Yildiz and Robert Fink ) 
 
Board of Supervisors – Wednesday, May 17, 2023 (6:30 PM, Work Shop Meeting) 
 
Board of Supervisors – Wednesday May 17, 2023 (7:00 PM, Business Meeting) 





























ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status

B-2022-95 2620 Skippack Pike 4/4/2023 $9,187.42Building Permit Completed
Description: New Townhomes

B-2022-99 2620 Skippack Pike 4/5/2023 $7,224.66Building Permit Completed
Description: New Townhome 

B-2022-107 2620 Skippack Pike 4/3/2023 $9,592.92Building Permit In Progress
Description: New construction -33  Townhomes 

B-2022-128 2620 Skippack Pike 4/17/2023 $9,344.92Building Permit Completed
Description: Construction of New Townhomes

B-2022-148 2620 Skippack Pike 4/17/2023 $9,517.92Building Permit Completed
Description: New Townhome Construction 

B-2022-151 2620 Skippack Pike 4/3/2023 $3,408.63Building Permit In Progress
Description: New Home Construction 

B-2022-165 2620 Skippack Pike 4/7/2023 $3,408.63Building Permit Completed
Description: Construction of NSFD

B-2022-198 2620 Skippack Pike 4/19/2023 $3,408.63Building Permit Completed
Description: Construction for NSFD

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 40
04/01/2023 to 04/30/2023

Run On: 5/1/2023 2:17:49 PM 1

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=33132&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=33143&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=33205&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=33282&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=33413&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=33455&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=33602&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=33735&printReport=print


ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status

B-2022-207 2620 Skippack Pike 4/24/2023 $3,399.75Building Permit Completed
Description: Construction of NSFD

B-2022-427 2705 POTSHOP RD 4/17/2023 $520.30Building Permit In Progress
Description: convert room above garage into living space

B-2023-73 2270 WARNER RD 4/12/2023 $111.06Building Permit In Progress
Description: Install foundation over existing deck, frame walls, install windows 

B-2023-81 2607 RESOLUTION RD 4/5/2023 $32.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Supply power to new shed 

B-2023-83 3205 SKIPPACK PIKE 4/5/2023 $637.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Renovation of #74 Spruce Run 

B-2023-86 1631 KRIEBEL MILL RD 4/7/2023 $32.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Electrical work. 

B-2023-89 2620 Skippack Pike 4/4/2023 $3,422.14Building Permit In Progress
Description: New SFD  2604 Hawthorn - Lot 34

B-2023-90 2656 HAWTHORN DR 4/7/2023 $32.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Run dedicated 20amp line on A/C fan, and breaker in wire...underground and pavilion 

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 40
04/01/2023 to 04/30/2023

Run On: 5/1/2023 2:17:49 PM 2

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=33771&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=34869&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36514&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36556&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36558&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36573&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36582&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36605&printReport=print


ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status

B-2023-91 3226 FISHER RD 4/7/2023 $287.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Construct in law suite to side of existing house. 

B-2023-92 2950 POTSHOP RD 4/7/2023 $304.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Demolish and dispose of cabins 17 & 19 as indicated. 

B-2023-95 3327 CUSTER WAY 4/26/2023 $129.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Construction of pool and patio. 

B-2023-96 SHEARER RD 4/21/2023 $109.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: To construct an Observation Platform at Peter Wentz Farmstead. 

B-2023-97 2013 STONY CREEK RD 4/12/2023 $137.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Construction of a deck including steps, with railing. 

B-2023-98 3205 SKIPPACK PIKE 4/17/2023 $635.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Renovation of #44 Pine Croft. 

B-2023-99 225 CASPIAN LN 4/7/2023 $102.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Supply and install one 18kw generator w/ transfer switch w/ gas hookup. 

B-2023-101 3411 ANDERS RD 4/12/2023 $79.50Building Permit In Progress
Metal garage  being built in side yard. 

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 40
04/01/2023 to 04/30/2023

Run On: 5/1/2023 2:17:49 PM 3

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36606&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36608&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36620&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36621&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36634&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36635&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36640&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36658&printReport=print


ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status
Description:

B-2023-102 1233 MERRYBROOK RD 4/7/2023 $89.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Replace heat pump/air handler 

B-2023-103 2620 Skippack Pike 4/7/2023 $3,117.63Building Permit In Progress
Description: New SFD

B-2023-105 2620 Skippack Pike 4/17/2023 $3,027.63Building Permit In Progress
Description: new sfd

B-2023-107 1026 VALLEY FORGE RD 4/20/2023 $132.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Basement bathroom. 

B-2023-109 3204 HOGARTH LN 4/20/2023 $157.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Installation of in ground pool with concrete deck and pavilion 

B-2023-110 1380 N TROOPER RD 4/17/2023 $124.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Installing 30 rooftop solar panels with all wirings. 

B-2023-111 2963 GERMANTOWN PIKE 4/13/2023 $94.50Building Permit Completed
Description: Replace existing sewer. 

B-2023-112 1133 KRIEBEL MILL RD 4/26/2023 $240.50Building Permit In Progress

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 40
04/01/2023 to 04/30/2023

Run On: 5/1/2023 2:17:49 PM 4

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36665&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36671&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36675&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36687&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36690&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36694&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36712&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36721&printReport=print


ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status
Description: Addition on to existing house. 

B-2023-113 2609 WINDSTORM WAY 4/26/2023 $132.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Remodel of basement space into kitchenette and bathroom 

B-2023-114 2607 RESOLUTION RD 4/26/2023 $32.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Building pergola in rear yard. 

B-2023-115 2201 LOCUST DR 4/27/2023 $79.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Construct new beam/support posts to replace existing beam/support below enclosed deck. 

B-2023-117 2304 ELM CIR 4/27/2023 $32.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Upgrade from 100amp to 200amp service. 

B-2023-118 2621 HAWTHORN DR 4/27/2023 $102.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Install 24kw residential generator w NG connection. 

B-2023-120 2146 WEBER RD 4/27/2023 $109.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: 896 square foot detached composite deck with low voltage lighting. (There will be no dirt work other than foundation holes)

B-2023-121 1895 OLD FORGE WAY 4/27/2023 $187.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: Finish attic area. 

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 40
04/01/2023 to 04/30/2023

Run On: 5/1/2023 2:17:49 PM 5

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36733&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36734&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36735&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36753&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36755&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36761&printReport=print
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36763&printReport=print


ID # N/ALocation N/A Issue Date CostType Status

B-2023-122 1896 OLD FORGE WAY 4/27/2023 $109.50Building Permit In Progress
Description: NexGen will be installing a 25'24' deck on the rear of the home with a roof. 

Total $72,838.24

Permit Attribute Report

Total: 40
04/01/2023 to 04/30/2023

Run On: 5/1/2023 2:17:49 PM 6

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=work&report_id=5&WOID=36767&printReport=print


Public Works Department Report 

                                                                              April 2023 

 

1) Road Maintenance 
A. Cleared inlets and drains throughout the Township 
B. Filled potholes throughout the Township 
C. Reestablishing edge of roadway swales 
D. Pruning vegetation to increase visibility of roadway signage and intersections  
E. Guiderail installed on Berks Road 
F. Turning lane installed at the intersection of Anvil Drive and Germantown Pike 
G. Loose boards secured on the Green Hill Road bridge 
H. First round of ROW mowing underway 
I. Stone added to secure failing roadway edges 

 
2) Storm Maintenance 

A. No storm events in the month of April 
 

3) Parks 
A. Twice weekly cleaning of restrooms, emptying trash receptacles, and stocking dog 

bags 
B. Repairing washouts and general trail maintenance 
C. Removal of dead trees on Township properties/parks  
D. Pulled stumps and repaired disturbed areas after tree removals 
E. Extended Heyser Park driveway 
F. Heebner #2 soccer field restoration work 
G. New grinder pump installed at the small Heebner pavilion 
H. Soil and seed at Mt Kirk Park underway 
I. All restrooms and drinking fountains opened for the season 

 
4) Vehicle Maintenance 

A. Performed weekly maintenance of all Township vehicles 
B. 64-42 Turbo/power concerns 
C. 64-62 Recall item addressed 

 
5) Miscellaneous 

A. Setting up and cleaning of Community Hall for rentals and Township events 
B. Nike Compost facility open to residents twice weekly 

 



 







Skippack EMS  
April 2023 calls 

Worcester Township 
 

Calls dispatched 41 
Transported 23 
Refusals 4 
No services * 2 
Fire 0 
Covered by other squads  
                              (7- A station off status) 
                              (7- Main on other call) 

14 

Lift assist 1 
Recalls      1 

 
* includes: accidental/false alarm for medical alert alarm, no patient found, 
 deceased, or police matters 
 



Resolution 2023-11 
Page 1 of 1 

TOWNSHIP OF WORCESTER  
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA  

  
RESOLUTION 2023-13 

  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE TOWNSHIP MANAGER 

TO SUBMIT THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT, AND TO 
SUBMIT FUTURE APPLICATIONS FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL APPROVAL EITHER IN 

WRITING OR VIA ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE, TO THE DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION AND TO SIGN THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF 

WORCESTER TOWNSHIP. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by authority of the Board of Supervisors 
of Worcester Township, Montgomery County, and it is hereby resolved by authority of the same, 
that the Township Manager of Worcester Township be authorized and directed to submit 
the Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement, to submit future modifications to the attached 
Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement, and to submit future Applications for Traffic Signal 
Approval either in writing or via electronic signature, to the Department of Transportation and to 
sign this Agreement on behalf of Worcester Township. 
 
RESOLVED THIS 17TH DAY OF MAY, 2023. 
 

FOR WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 
 
 

By: ____________________________________ 
Richard DeLello, Chair 
Board of Supervisors 

 
 

Attest: ___________________________________  
Sean Halbom, Secretary 

 
 
I, Sean Halbom, duly qualified Secretary of the Board of 
Supervisors of Worcester Township, Montgomery County, 
Pennsylvania, hereby certify that the forgoing is a true and correct 
copy of a Resolution duly adopted by a majority vote of the Board 
of Supervisors at a regular meeting held the 17th day of May, 2023, 
and said Resolution has been recorded in the minutes of the Board 
of Supervisors and remains in effect as of this date. 
 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I affix by hand and attach the seal of 
the Township of Worcester this 17th day of May, 2023. 
 
_______________________________ 























































MEMO 

to: 

cc: 

from: 

date: 

re: 

Board of Supervisors 

Sean Halbom, Township Manager

May 11, 2023

2023 Road Improvement Program - Bid Award

Below find information on the bid to be considered at the May 17 Business Meeting: 

1. The Township solicited bids for the implementation of the 2023 Road Improvement Program.  Bids 
were opened on April 26, and the lowest responsive and responsible bidder is James D. Morrissey, Inc. of 
Philadelphia, PA .A bid award is recommended for the base bid items, with the option to add Alternate 2 
(Township Administrative Offices) at a later by direction of the Board of Supervisors.



Exhibit A



Exhibit B



WORCESTER TOWNSHIP
2023- 2024 MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT - ROAD MATERIALS
BID OPENING DATE: January 31, 2023
BID TABULATION DATE: February 1, 2023 CONTRACTOR'S COMPARISON

HIGHWAY MATERIALS N/A N/A

DESCRIPTION
UNIT PRICE 
FOB PLANT

TOTAL             
(2 x 6)

UNIT PRICE 
DELIVERED

TOTAL               
(2 x 7)

UNIT PRICE 
DELIVERED 

AS 
DIRECTED

TOTAL      
(2 X 8)

UNIT PRICE 
FOB PLANT

TOTAL                          
(2 x 6)

UNIT PRICE 
DELIVERED

TOTAL                         
(2 x 7)

UNIT PRICE 
DELIVERED AS 

DIRECTED

TOTAL         
(2 X 8)

UNIT PRICE 
FOB PLANT

TOTAL                          
(2 x 6)

UNIT PRICE 
DELIVERED

TOTAL                         
(2 x 7)

UNIT PRICE 
DELIVERED 

AS 
DIRECTED

Total                  
(2 x 8)

Stone
No. 10 (#1 Screenings) NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID   NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID 
No. 8 (Aggregate (#1-B) 17.50$       $     5,250.00  $        25.65  $      7,695.00  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID   NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID 
No. 2A Aggregate Material 11.00$       $     4,400.00  $        19.15  $      7,660.00  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID   NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID 
No. 57 Aggregate (#2B) 14.00$       $     4,200.00  $        22.15  $      6,645.00  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID   NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID 
No. 3 Aggregate 14.00$       $     4,200.00  $        22.15  $      6,645.00  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID   NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID 
No. 3A Aggregate Material 14.00$       $     8,400.00  $        22.15  $   13,290.00  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID   NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID 
No. 1 Aggregate #4 (Ballast) 14.00$       $     2,800.00  $        22.15  $      4,430.00  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID   NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID 

Stone Subtotal  $  29,250.00  $   46,365.00 -$                -$                
Paving Material
Superpave asphalt mixture design, 25.0 
mm, PG 64-22 HMA, Base course, 0.3-3.0 
mESAL's  $      55.75  $   22,300.00  $        65.90  $   26,360.00  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID   NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID 
Superpave asphalt mixture design, 9.5 
mm, PG 64-22 HMA, Wearing course, 0.3-
3.0 mESAL's, SRL-H  $      66.70  $   26,680.00  $        76.85  $   30,740.00  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID   NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID 
PSP Cold Patch 152.00$     $   30,400.00  $      162.15  $   32,430.00  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID   NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID 
Superpave asphalt mixture design, 19.0 
mm, PG 64-22 HMA, Binder course, 0.3-
3.0 mESAL's  $      61.90  $   24,760.00  $        72.05  $   28,820.00  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID   NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID  NO BID 

Paving Subtotal  $104,140.00  $ 118,350.00 -$                -$                
TOTAL  $133,390.00  $ 164,715.00 -$                -$                -$              -$              -$              










	a. 3-15-23 - Bus. Meeting Minutes_
	b.4-19-23 - Business Meeting Mins
	c. finance report
	d. Permits - April 2023
	e. Public Works Department Report April 2023
	f. APRIL23_WVFD_TWP_REPORT
	g. FD
	h. Resolution 2023-13 - TSMA
	i. TSMA template
	j. 2023 RIP Recommendation for Award
	12 PW bid award docs
	memo - BoS - bid award - projects
	PW bid award docs
	EXa
	Exb

	PW Bid Tabs
	Sheet1


	2023 RIP Recommendation for Award




